
1 
 

  
Monday, August 24, 2015 

5:30 pm 
Agenda 

 
Although Council committee meetings are open to the public, public comment is not permitted at 
Council Committee of the Whole meetings. However, citizens are encouraged to attend and observe the 
meetings. Comment from citizens or professionals during the meeting may be solicited on agenda 
topics via invitation by the President of Council. 
 
All electronic recording devices must be located behind the podium area in Council Chambers and 
located at the entry door in all other meeting rooms and offices, as per Bill No.27-2012. 
 
 
I. Towing Contact and RFP 
 
II. Agenda Review 
 
III. District 6 Applications re schedule interviews and special meeting 
 
IV. Executive Session re Potential Litigation 
 
V. Other Matters

 
 
 CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

Committee of the Whole 
 

 



2 
 

 

MINUTES 
August 10, 2015 

5:00 P.M. 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: 
S. Marmarou, D. Sterner, J. Waltman, D. Reed, C. Daubert 
  
OTHERS PRESENT: 
L. Kelleher, S. Katzenmoyer, C. Younger, D. Cituk, R. Johnson, C. Snyder, S. Price, P. 
Mulligan, A. Chambers, F. Denbowski 
 
The Committee of the Whole meeting was called to order at 5:02 pm by Mr. Waltman.   
 
I. Agenda Review 
Mr. Waltman stated that there will be additional resolutions considered by Council this 
evening.  
 
Ms. Snyder stated that the grant application for the Skyline Dr project will not be 
deemed complete until each of the three participating municipalities earmark the 
matching funds.  She stated that this is approximately $97,000 for the City.  She stated 
that she will work with the Capital Improvement Project Committee to ensure that 
these funds are included in the 2016 capital budget and suggested that this resolution be 
added to the consent agenda. 
 
Ms. Snyder explained that the resolution will also authorize the Chair of the Lower 
Alsace Board of Supervisors to process the grant application and to proceed with the 
project.  Any changes will be reviewed with all entities before action is taken. 
 

 

COMMITTEE of the WHOLE 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 



3 
 

Mr. Marmarou noted his support of the resolution.  He stated that these improvements 
have been needed for many years.  He stated that there has been increased traffic on 
Skyline Dr.  He suggested that reflectors be placed in the ditch to prevent accidents.  
Ms. Kelleher stated that the ditch that Mr. Marmarou is referring to is on Oak Lane. 
 
Ms. Reed noted the importance of showing that other municipalities are willing to work 
with and cooperate with the City.  She stated that this will be funds well spent. 
 
Mr. Marmarou stated that the project is moving along due to the constant complaints 
about the condition of Oak Lane.   
 
Ms. Snyder stated that this has also been a priority for staff in Lower Alsace. 
 
Mr. Waltman stated that this resolution will be added to the consent agenda. 
 
Council reviewed this evening’s agenda including: 
 

• Resolution requesting EPA work with DEP on the Clean Power Plan 
 
Mr. Sterner stated that he does not support this resolution as the Clean Power Plan will 
kill the PA coal industry. 
 

• Ordinances amending parking meters and establishing a maximum parking rate 
 
Mr. Mulligan stated that the amendment to Chapter 576 will allow payment other than 
by coin.  He stated that this will make payment by the mobile app and the kiosks 
official.  He described several situations in which this would have been helpful in the 
past and stated that it will be positive for the Parking Authority and for the City.  He 
expressed the belief that it would reduce the number of tickets issued erroneously.  He 
stated that the mobile app and kiosks are also in use in Allentown and Bethlehem. 
 
Mr. Daubert questioned if the meter zones would be expanding.  Mr. Mulligan stated 
that they would not. 
 
Mr. Mulligan stated that the ordinance setting the maximum parking rate would allow 
the parking authority to have flexibility to set rates based on usage.  He stated that the 
Parking Authority has no intention of changing the rates at this time.  He explained that 
the rates would be changed by resolution of the Parking Authority and if the Parking 
Authority wanted to exceed the maximum rate it would need action by City Council. 
 



4 
 

Mr. Marmarou questioned the maintenance of the kiosks.  Mr. Mulligan explained that 
the mobile app and kiosks are web based.  He stated that the kiosks have 
interchangeable parts and are much easier to repair than parking meters.  He stated that 
the web based systems allows him to track specific situations and prevents potential 
abuses. 
 
Mr. Daubert expressed the belief that moving away from coins will be much more 
efficient.  He stated that Parking Authority employees will be able to spend less time 
emptying coins from meters.  Mr. Mulligan agreed and stated that employee time can 
now be used much more efficiently.  He stated that the Parking Authority does not plan 
to reduce staff.  He explained that people generally don’t carry coins. 
 
Mr. Waltman questioned if this was the last remaining issue to move the additional 
funding to the City.  Mr. Mulligan stated that it is. 
 
Mr. Sterner noted the need to educate the public.  Mr. Mulligan stated that the mobile 
app and kiosks are very user friendly.  He stated that he used symbols on the kiosks to 
address the City’s language issues. 
 
Mr. Price questioned if these ordinances were eligible for a vote this evening.  Mr. 
Waltman stated that they are. 
 

• Appointments/Reappointments 
 
Mr. Waltman suggested that the appointments and reappointments be handled 
together.  Council agreed. 
 
The representatives from the Parking Authority left the meeting at this time. 
 
II. Appointment of Interim Council President 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz joined the meeting via speaker phone. 
 
Mr. Waltman noted the need to fill the Council President seat through the end of the 
year. 
 
Mr. Marmarou stated that Council has 30 days to appoint someone.  He suggested 
waiting.  Mr. Waltman disagreed with waiting to appoint the Council President.  He 
stated this appointment is temporary. 
 
Ms. Reed stated that the ballot issues are outside the control of this body. 



5 
 

 
Mr. Waltman stated that he would appreciate Council’s support as the interim Council 
President.  He stated that he would work diligently through the budget season and 
prepare Council for the next administration. 
 
Mr. Marmarou stated that he was not admitted to a meeting being held between the 
City Clerk, the City Solicitor and Ms. Reed.  He expressed the belief that as an elected 
official he should have been admitted.   
 
Ms. Reed stated that she requested a private meeting with the City Solicitor.  She stated 
that when Mr. Marmarou arrived, she was in the middle of that meeting.  She stated 
that all Councilors have the right to meet privately with the Solicitor as needed and that 
she has apologized to Mr. Marmarou several times. 
 
Mr. Marmarou expressed the belief that he should have been allowed to attend. 
 
Mr. Waltman stated that each Council member has the right to meet with the Solicitor 
and Council staff as needed. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz suggested that Councilors speak up when they feel 
uncomfortable in or with a situation.  She noted the need to not assign blame and not to 
let emotions interfere with the work of the City. 
 
Mr. Waltman expressed the belief that all Councilors are under a great deal of stress at 
this time.  He stated that the key to moving forward is for Council to show it is a strong 
and productive body.  He stated that he is appreciative of Council’s support. 
 
Ms. Snyder questioned how the temporary appointment affects the election ballot.  Mr. 
Waltman explained that Council will accept applications for a District 6 Councilor to fill 
the seat through the end of the year.  He stated that he will also be working with the 
Democratic Committee to be placed on the ballot for Council President.  He stated that 
should he win both seats, he would need to resign one.  That would mean another 
appointment to the vacant seat through the next municipal election. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz suggested that this process be summarized in a bullet point 
list to help with public understanding.  She stated that this is a complicated process.  
She explained that the parties will be placing candidates on the November ballot for 
Council President since the primary election has already passed. 
 



6 
 

Mr. Marmarou questioned if the County Democratic Committee chooses the candidate.  
Mr. Waltman stated that they do but hopes that they will consider the recommendation 
of the City Committee. 
 
Mr. Waltman suggested Ms. Reed to be appointed to Vice President.  He stated that she 
has two years remaining on her term and that they work well together.  He noted his 
hope that all Councilors become more involved. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz agreed with Mr. Waltman’s suggestion.   
 
Ms. Reed expressed her disappointment and noted the need for open discussion.  She 
stated that all of Council has been impacted by this situation but that forward 
movement is needed. 
 
Mr. Waltman expressed the belief that Council has always been an ethical body.  He 
commended Mr. Acosta for taking responsibility for his actions.  He noted the need to 
reserve judgment and to work toward forgiveness. 
 
Mr. Marmarou stated that he feels for the family. 
 
Mr. Sterner stated that it is a shame about the entire intrigue.  He stated that it is easy to 
make mistakes and that all must be careful. 
 
Mr. Waltman stated that he never questioned Mr. Acosta’s ethics. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz stated that people make choices.  She stated that this choice 
was unethical.  She noted the need for Councilors to speak up when they see red flags.  
She noted the need to regain the public’s trust.  She stated that these are difficult times 
politically with the issues at the local, State, and Federal levels. 
 
Resolutions to appoint the President and Vice President will also be added to this 
evening’s agenda. 
 
III. Executive Session 
Mr. Marmarou requested a review of a legal settlement agreement. 
 
Mr. Younger noted the need for this review to be in executive session as it pertains to 
legal matters. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz left the meeting at this time. 



7 
 

 
Council entered executive session at 5:41 pm and exited at 5:46 pm. 
 
IV. Vacant Council BAC positions 
Mr. Waltman stated that Mr. Acosta held positions on the Diversity Board, the Local 
Redevelopment Authority and RATS.  He stated that he will need others to step 
forward for these positions. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 5:48 pm. 
 

Respectfully Submitted by 
Linda A. Kelleher, CMC, City Clerk 

 
 



8 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BILL NO. _____-2015 
AN ORDINANCE 

AMENDING CHAPTER 23, PART 7, OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF READING, 
BY REPEALING THE 

MINORITY BUSINESS PROCUREMENT ADVISORY BOARD AND REPLACING IT WITH 
THE EQUAL BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY ADVISORY BOARD 

 
The Council of the City of Reading hereby ordains as follows: 
 
Section One: Chapter 23, Part 7, of the Code of the City of Reading is amended, by 

repealing the Minority Business Procurement Advisory Board and 
replacing it with the Equal Business Opportunity Advisory Board, as 
specified in Exhibit A hereof. 

 
Section Two: This Ordinance shall be effective ten (10) days after adoption pursuant to 

Sections 219 and 221 of the City of Reading Home Rule Charter. 
 

Adopted _________________________, 2015 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
President of Council 

Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
                            City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Sent to Mayor ______ 
Date: ___________ 
Signed by Mayor ______ 
Date: ___________ 
Vetoed by Mayor:  ________ 
Date:  ___________ 
Over-ridden by Council:   
Date:  ___________ 

Drafted by   Legal Specialist & Deputy City Clerk 
 
Sponsored by/Referred by Mayor 
 
Introduced on    
 
Advertised on    
 
 



9 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES AND COUNCILS 
PART 7 

 
Equal Business Opportunity Advisory Board 

 
§ 23-701. Policy. 
 
It is the policy of the City, state and federal governments to foster an environment of 
inclusion in which all businesses are free to participate in business opportunities and to 
flourish without the impediments of discrimination. Businesses participating in these 
contracts shall do so on a fair and equitable basis. Vendors on these contracts shall not 
discriminate against any business because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, 
sexual orientation or disability. 
 
There is hereby established an Equal Opportunity Business Advisory Board to advise 
the Administration City on policies, procedures and practices to enhance participation 
of MBEs, DBEs, WBEs, SBEs and the lower-to-moderate income residents in 
procurement of City contracts. 
 
§ 23-702. Definitions. 
 
For the purpose of this Part, the following terms shall have the following respective 
definitions: 
 
AGE — — Includes any person 40 and above and shall also include any other person so 
protected by further amendment to the Federal Age Discrimination in Employment Act. 
 
AGENCY——Any City office, department, board or commission, including but not limited to 
the Council of the City of Reading. It shall also mean all legal entities which either: 
 

A. Receive funds, directly or indirectly, from the City, state or federal governments. 
 

B. Have entered into continuing contractual or cooperative relationships with the City, 
including quasi-public agencies, hospitals, schools, etc. 

 
C.  Operate under legal authority granted to them by City ordinance. 

AGGRIEVED PERSON – Includes such person or persons who believe that they have been 
injured or will be injured by a discriminatory employment act or practice that has occurred 
or is about to occur. 
 
CERTIFYING AGENCY – A private or public entity designated by the City procurement 
officers as an agency eligible to certify businesses as Certification Eligible Business. 
 



10 
 

CERTIFICATION ELIGIBLE BUSINESS OR CEB – any one or more businesses in the group 
consisting of DBEs, MBEs, SBEs, WBEs and such other categories of business enterprises 
established by the City procurement officers, or his/her designee, from time to time as 
eligible for participation in a certification program, when in his/her judgment the best 
available evidence supports such establishment. 
 
CITY CONTRACTS — — All City contracts,Any City contract, purchase order or 
agreement, not including lease of real property or collective bargaining agreement, 
awarded by any officer or agency of the City whether competitively bid or negotiated, 
including but not limited to, any construction contract with a total value in excess of 
$10,000 which: 
 

A. Is paid for in whole or in part with City, state or federal funds. 
 

B. Is financed either wholly or partially by state or federal funds which are 
administered by the City. 

 
C. Is funded in whole or in part by Financial Assistance (See § 23-706 below). 

 
CONTRACTOR – Any person or business entity that shall enter into a contract with the 
City and includes all partners and all joint ventures of such person. 
 
DISABLED PERSON — — A person who has a physical or mental impairment which 
substantially limits one or more of his or her major life activities or has a record of such 
impairment.  
 
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE or DBE — — When connected to a contract is 
funded in whole or in part from state or federal governmental sources, means a 
business entity designated pursuant to the rules and regulations of such governmental 
source, and includes a City designated certifying agency.Any small business enterprise:  
 
Which is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more socially and economically 
disadvantaged individuals. 
B. In the case of any publicly owned business, one in which at least 51% of the stock is 
owned by one or more socially and economically disadvantaged individuals, associations or 
groups; provided, however, that a reputable presumption shall exist that any person that 
has received more than $5,000,000 in three consecutive years of contract work from the 
City is not a DBE, and; provided further, that any previous certification of any such person 
as a DBE shall be re-evaluated pursuant to regulations to be promulgated by the MBEC. 

 
DISCRIMINATE and DISCRIMINATION — — used to deny someone the equal protection 
of the laws and includes any difference in treatment based on race, color, religion, 
ancestry, national origin, age, sex, familial status, handicap or previous filing of a complaint 
of discrimination. 
 



11 
 

DISPARITY ANALYSIS – in the City of Reading, the level of DBEs are underutilized in the 
performance of various types of contracts. 
 
FAMILIAL STATUS——One or more individuals, who have not obtained the age of 18 years 
being domiciled with: 
 

A. A parent or another person having legal custody of such individual or individuals. 
 
B. The designee of such parent having such custody, with the written permission of 

such parent or other person. 
 
C. Any person who is pregnant or is in the process of securing legal custody of any 

individual who has not attained the age of 18 years. 
 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE——Any grant, loan, incentive or abatement provided by, or with 
the authority or approval of, the City or a City-related agency, including but not limited to 
bond financing subsidies, tax increment financing aid, industrial development bonds, use of 
the power of eminent domain, land or property acquisition, Community Development 
Block Grant loans or grant, airport revenue bonds, Enterprise Zone designations, and aid 
from any federal, state or City or other similar agencies. 
 
INDIVIDUAL — — A natural person. 
 
HANDICAP — — With respect to a person, a physical or mental impairment which 
substantially limits one or more major life activities; a record of having such an 
impairment; or being regarded as having such an impairment. 
 
MINORITY-OWNED BUSINESS or MBE — — Minority business enterprise A local owned 
business which is at least 51 percent owned by one or more members of one or more 
minority groups, or, in the case of a publicly held corporation, at least 51 percent of the 
stock of which is owned by one or more members of one or more minority groups, 
whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more 
members of one or more minority groups, and which is not an established business. 

 
MAJOR LIFE ACTIVITIES - functions, such as caring for one's self, performing manual tasks, 
walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning and working. 
 
MINORITY PERSON —A person who is a citizen or lawful permanent resident of the 
United States and who is: 
 

A. African American (a person having origins in any of the black racial groups in 
Africa). 

 
B. Hispanic American (a person of Spanish or Portuguese culture with origins in 

Mexico, South or Central America, or the Caribbean Islands, regardless of race). 



12 
 

 
C. Asian American (a person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far 

East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent or the Pacific Islands). 
 
D. Native American (a person having origins in any of the original peoples of North 

America). 
 
E. For purposes of contracts funded by state or federal governmental sources, 

groups found to be eligible for the purposes of DBEs by such governmental 
sources. 

NON-JOB-RELATED HANDICAP OR DISABILITY — — Any handicap or disability which 
does not substantially interfere with the ability to perform the essential functions of the 
employment which a handicapped person applies for, is engaged in, or has been engaged in. 
Uninsurability or increased cost of insurance under a group or employee insurance plan 
does not render a handicap or disability job-related. 
 
PERSON——A corporation, partnership or association, or any combination thereof, as well 
as a natural person. 
 
PROCUREMENT – Includes buying, purchasing, renting, licensing, or acquisition of any 
supply, service, or product.  Procurement also includes all functions that pertain to 
obtaining any supply, service, or product, including drafting the requirements, the 
selection and solicitation of sources, the preparation, review, and award of contract, 
and all phases of the contract administration. 
 
SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE or SBE — — A business which is independently owned 
and operated and which is not dominant in its field of operation as further defined in the 
Small Business Size Regulations, adopted by the U.S. Small Business Administration and 
published in the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, including the industry size standards set 
forth in the table contained therein, which regulations are incorporated herein, and made a 
part hereof by reference. 
 
SOCIALLY AND ECONOMICALLY DISADVANTAGED INDIVIDUALS — — Those who have 
either been subjected to racial, sexual or ethnic prejudice because of their identity as a 
member of a group or to differential treatment because of their disability without regard to 
their individual qualities, and whose ability to compete in the free enterprise system has 
been impaired due to diminished capital and credit opportunities as compared to others in 
the same business who are not socially disadvantaged 
 

A. In determining who socially and economically disadvantaged individuals are, the 
Minority Business Procurement Advisory Board Equal Business Opportunity 
Advisory Board may make a reputable presumption that all minority persons, all 
women and all disabled persons shall be so classified. 

 



13 
 

B. The Minority Business Procurement Equal Business Opportunity Advisory Board, 
in determining whether an individual shall be classified as a socially and 
economically disadvantaged individual, shall also consider, among other things, the 
extent of the liquid assets and net worth of such socially disadvantaged individuals. 

 
WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE or WBE — — Any Women Business Enterprise 
 

A. Which is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more socially and 
economically disadvantaged women. 

 
B. In the case of any publicly owned business, one in which at least 51% of the stock is 

owned by one or more socially and economically disadvantaged women, 
associations or groups; provided, however, that a reputable presumption shall exist 
that any person that has received more than $5,000,000 in three consecutive years 
of contract work from the City is not a WBE, and; provided further, that any 
previous certification of any such person as a WBE shall be reevaluated pursuant to 
regulations to be promulgated by the MBEC. 

 
§ 23-703. Minority Business Procurement Advisory BoardPurpose 
 
Stated Mission. To advise the Administration City on issues and policies concerning 
enhanced participation, to the maximum extent feasible, in employment practices third-
party contractors at all levels, including but not limited to apprenticeship programs, 
training programs, etc., for MBEs, DBEs, WBEs, and the lower-to-moderate income 
residents, etc. within the distressed areas as mandated by City, State and Federal 
government regulations. 
 
§ 23-704. Minority Business Procurement Advisory Board Membership and Officers. 
 

A. The Board shall consist of seven five members, each to be appointed by the Mayor, 
with City Council approval, for a two three year term. The terms shall be 
staggered so that no more than two member’s terms expire in the same calendar 
year.   

 
B. Membership will include a member who is a minority business owner, a member 

of the Building/Trades Council, a member of the Chamber of Commerce, a 
procurement professional, and a resident at large. 

 
C. The members of the Board may be reappointed to successive terms of office. Each 

member of the Board shall continue to serve after their term until their successor has 
been qualified and appointed. 

 
D. The members of the Board shall serve without compensation but may be reimbursed 

for all necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties in accordance 
with appropriations made by Council. 

 



14 
 

E. The Board shall elect one of its members as Chairman and may elect such other 
officers as it may deem necessary. The Chairman may, with the approval of the 
Board, appoint such committees as may be necessary to carry out the powers and 
duties of the Board, and the members may authorize such committees to take any 
necessary action for the Board. 

 
F. In the event that a member wishes to resign, they must do so in writing to the 

Chairman and to the City Clerk. A copy of this letter should be provided to all 
members for information purposes only. 

 
G. The Board shall adopt such rules and regulations for its own organization, operations 

and procedures as the Board shall deem necessary to administer and implement this 
Part 7. 

 
H. The Administrative Services Director, or their designee, shall make reasonable 

effort to accommodate the monitoring of MBEs, DBEs, WBEs, SBEs and lower-to-
moderate income businesses and subcontractors participating in City contracts and 
its procurement process. 

 
I. Removal of members. Any member may be removed for misconduct or neglect of 

duty or for other just cause by a majority vote of Council taken after the member has 
received 15 days' advance notice of the intent to take such vote. Failure of a member 
to attend three consecutive regular meetings of the Board will constitute grounds for 
immediate removal from the Board by City Council. Failure of a member to attend at 
least 50% of the regular meetings of the Board in a calendar year will constitute 
grounds for immediate removal from the Board by City Council. The Chairperson of 
the Board shall inform the City Clerk in writing when a member has failed to comply 
with this attendance policy. Following such notification, City Council may vote to 
remove the member and seek applicants to fill the vacant position. 
[Amended 9-13-2010 by Ord. No. 66-2010] 
 

§ 23-705. Meetings 
 
The Board shall hold at least four quarterly public meetings during each calendar year.  
 
Three members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and 
a majority vote of those present at any meeting shall be sufficient for any official action 
taken by the Board.  
 
§ 23-706. Powers and duties of Board. 
 
The Equal Business Opportunity Advisory Board shall advise the Administration City in 
accord with the policy set forth herein and in so doing may also:  

 



15 
 

1. Develop a procedure to advise the City in outreaching and encouraging MBEs, DBEs, 
WBEs, SBEs and lower-to-moderate income businesses to participate in 
procurement. 

 
2. Develop a procedure to advise the City in outreaching and encouraging MBEs, DBEs, 

WBEs, SBEs and lower-to-moderate income businesses to participate in City 
contracts as subcontractors. 

 
3. Advise the Administration City on the total number of MBEs, DBEs, WBEs, SBEs and 

lower-to-moderate income businesses in the Berks County Standard Statistical Area. 
 

4.  Maintain a listing of all such residents eligible vendors and make it available to all 
agencies.  
 

5. Develop a process to ensure all majority contractors are aware of the existence and 
identity of MBEs, DBEs, WBEs, SBEs and lower-to-moderate income businesses in 
Reading and Berks County. 

 
6. Provide an annual written report to the City Administration and Council on the 

MBEs, DBEs, WBEs, SBEs and lower to-moderate income businesses participating in 
City contracts, including subcontractors, and its procurement process annually. 

 
7. Develop appropriate policies and procedures for monitoring the Board's mission 

and policy. 
 
§ 23-707. City contracts. 
 
All contracts of the City and its contracting agencies shall encourage the contractor to 
comply with the policy of this article to enhance the participation of MBEs, DBEs, WBEs, 
SBEs and the lower-to-moderate income residents, etc., therewith and to comply with any 
State or Federal law or laws or regulations relating to unlawful employment practices in 
connection with any work to be performed thereunder and shall require the contractor to 
include a similar provision in all subcontracts. 
 
 
 


